
 
 

ORANGE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY PARK BOARD 
 

July 22, 2009 Regular Meeting 
 

1 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Chairperson Jennifer Christian.   1 
 2 
The minutes were taken and prepared by Secretary Lisa Knapp. 3 
 4 
ROLL CALL:   5 
Present: Jennifer Christian, Len Fisher, Chris Masciola, Michelle Eckels 6 
Absent: Steve Aumiller 7 
 8 
Other township officials present: Trustee Liaison Nelson Katz; Secretary Lisa Knapp; 9 
Facilities, Grounds, and Parks Manager Bob Barbosky; Township Administrator Gail 10 
Messmer; Maintenance and Parks Director Beth Hugh; Township Owner’s Rep Scott 11 
Overturf. 12 
 13 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 14 
Ms. Christian made a motion to approve the minutes from meetings dated 2/25/09, 15 
3/19/09, and 5/27/09 as presented.  Mr. Masciola seconded the motion.  Vote: Christian, 16 
yes; Masciola, yes; Eckels, yes; Fisher, yes, abstain from 5/27/09.  Motion carried, 17 
minutes approved.  18 
 19 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 20 
♦ Joe McGowan, 3294 Sunglow Dr., Lewis Center, OH  43035, said he moved to 21 

Willow Springs North recently from Clintonville.  He has heard there are plans to 22 
build a trail around his neighborhood and Alum Creek and he would like to obtain 23 
more information regarding this. 24 

♦ Mr. Overturf offered to provide more information to him.  25 
 26 

AGENDA ITEMS 27 
 28 

“SHADES OF ORANGE” WATER FEATURE 29 
♦ Mr. Fisher distributed information regarding a water feature.  He heard from 30 

somebody that near Lake Michigan there is a musical fountain where during the 31 
warm weather months, a band plays music and there are dancing waters.  Although 32 
the concept is simple, busloads of people come to see these dancing waters and hear 33 
the music.   34 

♦ Mr. Fisher said such the water feature could be a great attribute for Orange Township 35 
and he suggested the name “Shades of Orange.”  He does not intend to press the 36 
matter but to the township powers-to-be he feels it is well worth consideration.  37 
Somebody may find some kind of legal issue with the water feature but he is certain 38 
such issues could be overcome with some effort. 39 

♦ Mr. Fisher said such a feature would be great for all of Orange Township, and he 40 
noted that Orange Township businesses have gone out of their way to work on the 41 
fourth of July race and parade, and this could help them if large numbers of people 42 
come into the area. 43 

♦ Ms. Messmer asked if it would need to be somewhere where a band could come or if 44 
it would be a feature of its own with piped-in music.  Mr. Fisher said perhaps 45 
something fairly small could start off at North Orange Park and the township could 46 
see how successful it is prior to spending too much money. Such a feature would 47 
differentiate Orange Township from the other townships in the area and it would be 48 
really neat. 49 

♦ Mr. Masciola said it seems like a good idea.  Ms. Eckels said a timed fountain exists 50 
at the Easton Towne Center which does not have music, and she asked if Mr. Fisher 51 
was considering such a feature.  Mr. Fisher said perhaps something slightly grander 52 
and which would play at night with lights; lighting is a large part of the feature as the 53 
water changes color.  Ms. Christian said she likes the idea and thanked Mr. Fisher for 54 
bringing up the idea for consideration. 55 

 56 
 57 
 58 
 59 



 
 

ORANGE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY PARK BOARD 
 

July 22, 2009 Regular Meeting 
 

2 

BIKE LANES DISCUSSION 60 
♦ Ms. Christian said that there have been prior discussions regarding painted bike lanes 61 

on roadways, and that Mr. Overturf had asked that this be put on the agenda because 62 
there are trails which may lend themselves to this approach. 63 

♦ Mr. Overturf said that the issue was originally brought up due to a discussion of 64 
painting bike lanes on Highmeadows Village Drive.  However perhaps just bike 65 
symbols will be installed instead.  He discussed the issue with Ms. Hugh and 66 
considering the traffic flow and traffic rule, bicyclists will have to maintain use of 67 
those rules.  It would indicate a designated path for people to get from one area to 68 
another.  Installing lanes would suddenly restrict some things and would also cause 69 
liability to the township which it may not desire.  70 

♦ Thus, it makes sense to him to paint symbols on both sides of the roads on 71 
Highmeadows Village Drive. This wouldn’t be done in many areas, but that area 72 
lends itself to that because it leads from Riverbend Avenue to Highbanks Metro Park.  73 
Perhaps in the future similar action could be taken on Walker Woods Boulevard 74 
because it ties in some things on Powell Road.  75 

♦ Ms. Christian confirmed that he was suggesting using symbols instead of actual 76 
painted lanes.  Mr. Fisher said that perhaps signs would be better than something 77 
written on the streets, because cars may expect bikes to only be in the areas where the 78 
marks are on the pavement; however, parked cars on the road will result in bikes 79 
having to go around the parked car.   80 

♦ Mr. Overturf said traffic rules will dictate the use of the areas, not what is indicated 81 
on the signage, which will be directional in nature.  Also, the township doesn’t want 82 
to install many signs because people don’t like signs in their yards.   83 

♦ Mr. Masciola said it seems that they did good research and it has been well thought-84 
out.  He likes the idea of signs not throughout the route but perhaps at the beginning 85 
and end.  Mr. Overturf said that the information would indicate where the trails lead 86 
to. 87 
 88 

RESIDENT FOLLOW-UP FROM SURVEY RESULTS 89 
♦ Ms. Christian said that a township-wide community survey was sent out as part of the 90 

Master Park Plan Update process, and some residents responded indicating that they 91 
would like to be involved and volunteer.  Ms. Messmer has provided her with this list, 92 
and all but two people provided their email address.  Ms. Christian suggested that an 93 
email be crafted thanking them for their interest, providing updated information 94 
including items such as the pool expansion, etc. which have transpired in direct 95 
response to feedback from the residents and stating that their names will be kept on 96 
file in the event that there is an opportunity for them to get involved.   97 

 98 
MUSIC IN THE PARK (FOLLOW-UP DISCUSSION) 99 
♦ Ms. Christian said that Music in the Park has been discussed in the past by the 100 

OTCPB and it will be discussed again tonight by Mr. Fisher. 101 
♦ Mr. Fisher said he wanted to provide a reminder that Music in the Park has been 102 

discussed in the past so it doesn’t become a dead subject.  He is aware that it couldn’t 103 
be done at the Township Hall and Park, but North Orange Park is a possibility and 104 
one of the music directors at Orange High School stated that he could provide the 105 
band for that if desired. 106 

♦ Mr. Fisher said this is just a matter of organizing this and doing it, and Orange 107 
Township is one of the few entities in this area that doesn’t do any music program at 108 
all.  He noted that there would be no cost to the township.   109 

♦ Ms. Messmer said the band director has not contacted anyone at the township yet.  110 
Mr. Fisher said the township was supposed to contact him.  Ms. Messmer said, “No, 111 
he was to contact us” the last time she spoke with him.  Mr. Fisher asked whether she 112 
had been in contact with her and when.  Ms. Messmer said she was not sure whether 113 
the band director’s idea died or whether he has been busy doing other things.   114 

♦ Mr. Fisher said it was not the band director’s idea, it was his idea and he had 115 
contacted him about the idea.  Ms. Messmer said something had changed after that 116 
conversation. The idea was alive for a while but she doesn’t know where it stands 117 



 
 

ORANGE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY PARK BOARD 
 

July 22, 2009 Regular Meeting 
 

3 

now.  Mr. Fisher said there are three different high schools in the area and at least one 118 
of the bands from those schools would probably be interested.  Ms. Messmer said she 119 
would talk about it regarding what they expect and need. 120 

♦ Ms. Eckels asked if there was a method to let the public know about this.  Mr. Fisher 121 
said it could be done through the website and newspaper. Ms. Christian said the 122 
school could also use its existing channels through parents to spread the word, and 123 
she felt that the concept was a great idea. 124 

 125 
HOA PRESENTATION STATUS 126 
♦ Ms. Christian said that Mr. Katz will be sharing the revised homeowners’ association 127 

presentation with the other trustees for their approval. 128 
♦ Ms. Christian said that in order to move ahead with the homeowners’ association 129 

presentations, because the pamphlet was more detailed and required using an outside 130 
printer, it has been suggested that the PowerPoint information will be presented and 131 
left with homeowners’ associations, as well as a trail map which will be in an easy-to-132 
read format and which will include the location of the township’s current parks.  The 133 
pamphlet is not gone forever but this way the homeowners’ associations can proceed 134 
at this time. 135 

♦ Ms. Christian said that she will communicate via email with the Board members 136 
regarding whether they have a preference for which homeowners’ associations they 137 
wish to visit, such as their own. 138 

♦ Mr. Katz publicly commended Ms. Eckels for her efforts into the pamphlet.  Ms. 139 
Eckels said that Ms. Christian and Mr. Katz also helped, and that she enjoyed the 140 
process.  She will get the final edits to Mr. Katz. 141 
 142 

TRAIL DESIGN SUGGESTIONS 143 
♦ Ms. Eckels commended everybody who has been involved in trail design.  She has 144 

heard many positive comments from her neighborhood regarding their use of the 145 
trails, and her family uses it every night.  The trails enhance communication 146 
throughout the community and they are doing a wonderful thing for all the 147 
homeowners. 148 

♦ Ms. Eckels said that she has heard comments from several homeowners and she 149 
wished to share this information with the Board, and she also wished to provide more 150 
information regarding the design of bike paths and her experience through her job 151 
with this. 152 

♦ Ms. Eckels said the township’s bike paths are restricted to historical farm land and 153 
much of it is open, not well-wooded and has few large riparian zones against creeks, 154 
etc.  There are also many restrictions on the township’s bike paths including 155 
easements, power lines, etc. and those items are unsightly and also difficult to hide.  156 
The trails are restricted to roadway easements and she thinks the township has dealt 157 
with many of the restrictions very well in regards to building the paths and making 158 
them accessible to the community.   159 

♦ Ms. Eckels said that she has heard comments regarding the design of the trails being 160 
very straight and not well-wooded or protected, which is related to the above-161 
mentioned situations.  She has discussed with people that the township is limited in 162 
regards to what it can do.  She has traversed different paths outside the township 163 
because they are well-wooded, including the Scioto River and Alum Creek paths.  164 
These paths are particularly enjoyable because they meander and are heavily wooded 165 
with nice scenery, but those are not available in the township.  This is an important 166 
item to add to paths and although there are concerns about tree root damage, there are 167 
engineering controls and barriers which can be installed which stop the tree roots 168 
from growing there, but they must be installed at the time the tree is planted.  Adding 169 
a meandering nature and trees to paths also adds aesthetically pleasing aspects. 170 

♦ Ms. Eckels said she is aware that the easements must be a certain width and that it is 171 
difficult to get a path to meander within that width, but when that option is available 172 
it would be a nice feature to have; fast-growing trees and high bushes are nice 173 
features which the community would like. She said a tree-planting day could be held, 174 
and said she has done several of those in Westerville.  This can be done inexpensively 175 
by having volunteers digging out saplings from a heavily-wooded community area 176 



 
 

ORANGE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY PARK BOARD 
 

July 22, 2009 Regular Meeting 
 

4 

and moving them to the bike path area.  The community feels more involved when 177 
then get involved in events such as tree planting days, and that would be nice to have 178 
on Arbor Day. 179 

♦ Ms. Eckels said that trees help reduce the reflective heat on the paths.  During the 180 
summer, from 11:00 AM to 5:00 PM people don’t use the township paths and this is 181 
mostly due to the fact that the trails have limited shading.  As an alternative people 182 
use the Alum Creek and Scioto River paths. 183 

♦ Ms. Eckels said that signs have been discussed before by this Board, and she noted 184 
that most trails in the area have trail rules which are posted, and that does take money, 185 
but some include speed restrictions, animal waste, shared path courtesy, and the new 186 
helmet requirement in Columbus which started yesterday, requiring all children under 187 
age 17 to wear helmets when biking.  She said the township could adopt trail rules if 188 
desired, including such a helmet rule. 189 

♦ Ms. Hugh said that the township park rules are posted at each park.  Ms. Eckels asked 190 
if they included trail rules.  Mr. Overturf said they did.  Mr. Barbosky said speed 191 
restrictions were not included.  Mr. Overturf asked why speed restrictions were 192 
necessary, as no motorized vehicles are permitted on township trails.  Ms. Eckels said 193 
that the restriction in Columbus is 15 MPH, which gets the fast bikers off the paths.  194 
Posting trail rules helps users to acknowledge courtesy.   195 

♦ Ms. Hugh said that requiring helmets for children is a great safety idea, but she didn’t 196 
know how it could be enforced.  For example, there is currently an issue regarding 197 
violations of the catch and release requirement on township properties regarding 198 
whether the sheriff’s office or ODNR would enforce that.  The sheriff’s office cannot 199 
patrol the paths and doing so is not ODNR’s responsibility, so although the rule could 200 
be put into place it would be difficult to enforce. 201 

♦ Ms. Eckels said that Columbus paths are mostly away from the roads and harder to 202 
see, whereas Orange Township’s paths are open and close to the road.   She noted that 203 
the fine is $15 per citation in Columbus.  Ms. Hugh said that would be a sheriff’s 204 
deputy issue and she will discuss the issue with them.  Ms. Eckels asked her to find 205 
out if they were looking into that now since the regulation has gone into effect in 206 
Columbus. 207 

 208 
DESIGN OPTIONS 209 
♦ Ms. Eckels said that regarding design options, she did a project in Canal Winchester 210 

on pervious concrete, which she provided a sample of.  She looks into environmental 211 
design in any project and also considers the cost issues.  Pervious concrete and 212 
asphalt are cost efficient materials.  Pervious concrete is laid like concrete, and storm 213 
water retention is beneath it so above-ground ponds are necessary; the pond is located 214 
underground.  The material allows the water to trickle down to the aquifer and it 215 
doesn’t have to be discharged into a stream. 216 

♦ Ms. Eckels displayed a photo of the project road in Canal Winchester which had 217 
pervious concrete used as side road parking.  Ms. Hugh said she has done a lot of 218 
research into this material.  When she lived in Denver this material was looked into 219 
because detention areas are so expensive.  Denver has a different climate and she 220 
bought into it there, but it has not been used enough in Ohio.  When she worked for a 221 
private development firm in Ohio, which owned Westland Mall, she looked into it for 222 
that project.  She didn’t recommend using it now until it has been proven in Ohio’s 223 
climate, as the material is pervious and holds water and there are so many freeze/thaw 224 
cycles that the material needs to be proved first here.   225 

♦ Ms. Eckels said that her company has installed this material at The Ohio State 226 
University as well, and many communities in this area are beginning to use it.  The 227 
City of Hilliard is installing the material as concrete gutters so the water doesn’t have 228 
to travel to a catch basin; it just goes straight into the ground.  It has low strength so it 229 
is not good for heavy loads, but a bike trail would be a good application is one is 230 
trying to move water from a low-lying area.  She has seen it used frequently in 231 
parking lots, including at Target, and she explained that parking lots are notoriously 232 
bad ponding areas.  It would not be desirable on roadways where there is a lot of ice 233 
scraping. 234 



 
 

ORANGE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY PARK BOARD 
 

July 22, 2009 Regular Meeting 
 

5 

♦ Ms. Hugh said she would contact Ms. Eckels and have an off-line conversation 235 
regarding this.  She would like to become familiar with such projects in the area so 236 
she can keep an eye on it; she is interested in the material. 237 

♦ Mr. Fisher said that the parking lot at the Dublin Ohio 43017 post office is a good 238 
example of where the material has been used.  However, it is not a good application 239 
because of the co-efficient of hardness which is hard on joints for runners and 240 
walkers.  Ms. Eckels said that the material is also bumpy; however, an asphalt 241 
application has now been created to address these issues.  This would be good for 242 
non-vehicle applications. 243 

♦ Ms. Eckels explained that a 4’ deep sand layer is placed beneath it which will serve as 244 
retention, and it is slowly released into the ground.  The material can be colored any 245 
color desirable, which can reduce heat impact, such as brown or beige, and that helps 246 
with the environmental impact and heat index.  She has seen it used on rooftops as 247 
well.  248 

♦ Ms. Eckels said that the parks system in Orange Township is still at an infant age and 249 
there is a lot of growth potential, so this is good to keep in mind for future design 250 
options which the community might like and which may enhance the environment or 251 
lessen the impacts.  This is especially true if it is found that there is not enough space 252 
for retention at the community center. 253 

♦ Ms. Eckels noted that water which is released off of asphalt is very hot and when it is 254 
released into a stream it the habitat of the fish and other wildlife is affected.  255 
Temperatures have increased in streams in this area due to the increase of asphalt 256 
development. 257 

♦ Ms. Christian said this is excellent information and she thanked Ms. Eckels for the 258 
information and the sample, as she had never heard of this material.  She liked her 259 
ideas regarding Arbor Day tree planting, and part of Ms. Hugh’s role will be to look 260 
at how things are done in the community.  261 

♦ Mr. Overturf said that regarding the design of trails and trees, there will be a trail in 262 
the wooded area in Alum Creek.  He noted that some people don’t want trails through 263 
the wooded areas near their homes. 264 
.   265 

PARK BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 266 
♦ Ms. Christian said that last November, this Board’s meetings changed from being 267 

once per month to every other month; however, there have already been many 268 
meetings this year.  Ms. Knapp noted that this is the 7th month of the year and this is 269 
the 8th meeting this year because in addition to regular meetings there have been 270 
strategic planning meetings and trail building seminars. Ms. Christian noted that 271 
board members have also spent much time on other projects outside of regular and 272 
special meetings.  She asked how the Board felt the current meeting schedule was 273 
working. 274 

♦ Ms. Eckels asked whether the length of the meetings has increased since they were 275 
changed to every other month.  Ms. Christian said that it has sometimes but not every 276 
time.  Ms. Knapp said they were typically 2.5-3.25 hours long.  Mr. Masciola said the 277 
meetings have been longer than they were but not twice as long. 278 

♦ Mr. Masciola said that he felt enough is being done every other month, and that his 279 
biggest concern with going every other month had been that doing so could delay the 280 
critical path of events which must happen for a project to be completed.  However, 281 
the Board has been able to meet when necessary. 282 

 283 
TRUSTEE LIAISON REPORT 284 
♦ Mr. Katz provided the following information: 285 

 On 6/2/09 he and township attorney Mike McCarthy met with the Northpoint 286 
Meadows homeowners’ association board and its management company.  This 287 
subdivision is located right around the Del-Co Water tower and points south. He 288 
asked these entities to reaffirm the easement commitments which had already 289 
been received from their predecessor, Maronda Homes, who turned over 290 
everything to the homeowners’ association since those affirmations had been 291 
made, and the easements had not yet been recorded.  Many requests were made of 292 
the township, many of which could not possibly be accommodated, but the 293 



 
 

ORANGE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY PARK BOARD 
 

July 22, 2009 Regular Meeting 
 

6 

township did offer to look into some.  Mr. Overturf was offered to walk the 294 
property with the representatives. 295 

 On 6/10/09 he learned that official approval has been received from Delaware 296 
County regarding the township’s desire to build a trail in the right-of-way along 297 
Owenfield Drive from Powell Road to Hidden Ravines Drive, progressing to the 298 
traffic light at Hidden Ravines Drive and Route 23 across from the GFS store.  299 
Mr. Overturf has completed the bid book for that construction. 300 

 The Gooding Boulevard Extension, which extends the trail from North Orange 301 
Park to the location of the new Delaware County District Library will be added as 302 
an alternate of the Owenfield Trail bid book.  The bid book will be presented to 303 
the trustees at its next meeting on 8/3/09, and it will be advertised for bids for two 304 
weeks, the bid will be awarded, and construction will begin and is expected to 305 
take about one month. 306 

 An easement is necessary from Suburban Gas on its exclusive easement on a 307 
small piece of property just north of the Dominion Homes/Glen Oak park area 308 
and just south of the Del-Co Water Company Easements.  He and Mr. McCarthy 309 
are working diligently on this matter and he will be meeting with them face-to-310 
face. 311 

 At the 6/15/09 Regular Trustee Meeting, that board approved the Active Glen 312 
Oak Park conceptual design drawings from Raugh and Associates, and also a 313 
purchase order was approved for $15,200.00.   314 

 Several days later he and Mr. Overturf drove the length of the Owenfield Drive 315 
property from slightly north of Powell Road to Hidden Ravines drive, in order to 316 
determine where the path would run and where the crossovers were need to run 317 
down the east side of the drive, then crossing over at the southern edge of the 318 
Meijer parking lot to run the west side of the drive all the way up to Hidden 319 
Ravines Drive.  Mr. Overturf confirmed that the trail won’t lead all the way south 320 
to Powell Road. 321 

 He and Mr. Overturf walked the North Orange Trail through Summerfield Village 322 
east of the new Glen Oak Park property and ending on trillium drive.  The 323 
Northpoint Meadows subdivision had some concerns about the trail behind their 324 
property and the proximity to their homes, privacy issues, etc.  He had suggested 325 
that these residents walk the North Orange Trail to see the quality of work the 326 
township has done, how close to the homes that trail is, and the fact that there is 327 
no fencing or mounding and there are no problems. 328 

 He and Mr. Overturf looked at the Glen Oak Park property and discussed some 329 
features they may want to see there.  The next day he and Ms. Hugh drove the 330 
Gator through the same trail and he took photos.  He, Ms. Hugh, and Mr. Overturf 331 
also walked down to the Northpoint Meadows perimeter where the township 332 
hopes to build its trail, and he took photos attempting to capture the distance to 333 
the trail from the homes.  He sent the pictures to the Northpoint Meadows 334 
homeowners’ association. 335 
• Ms. Christian said that the path along the railroad tracks in that area was 336 

installed by the developer is along the railroad tracks on the outside of the 337 
fenceon the inside of the fence and along the tracks, and Mr. Aumiller has had 338 
stated in the past that it would have been nice if the trail was installed inside 339 
the fence instead.  n’t outside the fence.  She asked ifwhether it would be 340 
possible  there was a possibility toto ensure ensure  that future trails were are 341 
built outside inside of the fence next to neighborhoods.  Mr. Katz said he 342 
could think of arguments for both sides of the concept. Ms. Hugh said the 343 
fence serves as a delineation of the residents’ property lines from the open 344 
space.   345 

• Mr. Katz said that the process of obtaining easements in this situation has had 346 
to be started all over again.  He asked Mr. McCarthy about why the easements 347 
were not recorded, and he found that it had to do with saving money.  348 
Batching things together to go to the court rather than multiple times saves 349 
money.  However, when Mr. Katz considered all the time and effort that must 350 
be expended now to obtain the easement, he has asked that in the future, 351 
easements are immediately recorded. This cannot happen again. 352 



 
 

ORANGE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY PARK BOARD 
 

July 22, 2009 Regular Meeting 
 

7 

 On 6/23/09 he, Mr. McCarthy, Mr. Overturf, and representatives of the 353 
Northpoint Meadows homeowners’ association walked the property.   He and Mr. 354 
Overturf had previously discussed moving a portion of the front trail which runs 355 
parallel to East Orange Road further north and away from the homes’ property 356 
lines.  Mr. Overturf had made the suggestion of running the trail at a 45 degree 357 
angle for this purpose and the residents seemed to like that idea, so new drawings 358 
were created and emailed to these residents. 359 

 On 6/24/09 he met with Mr. Overturf to discuss the projects they wish to 360 
complete by the end of 2009, including: 361 
 362 

1) Owenfield Trail 363 
2) Leveling/dirt movement at the Glen Oak Park property (the ball fields will 364 

not be completed until spring) 365 
3) The Lewis Center Rail Trail, including Glen Oak and the Del-Co Water 366 

Easements (The Northpoint Meadows and Villages of Oak Creek 367 
easements will not be built out until next year) 368 

4) The North Orange Aquatic Center Pool Addition. 369 
 370 
• Mr. Fisher asked if it was possible that the Lewis Center Trail Extension could 371 

be completed this year.  Mr. Barbosky and Mr. Katz said it may be possible 372 
depending on the events which occur. 373 

 At the 5/25/09 Trustee Special Meeting an easement donation was accepted from 374 
Park Place Village at North Orange Condominiums.  The trail had already been 375 
built by Bob Webb and the condo association agreed to donate an easement to the 376 
township on their already-built trail.  The township had previously built a 377 
connector piece to that trail. 378 

 On 6/29/09 he met with P.K. Tudor of the Del-Co Water Company and the 379 
township received the easements the township had requested.  The documents 380 
have been sent to Delaware County and court approval has been received, and he 381 
will request at the next trustee meeting on 8/3/09 to accept the easements, which 382 
can then be recorded by the county recorder.  383 

 He met on 7/8/09 with Mr. Overturf again, and he stated that the bid books and 384 
drawings reference in the books for the Owenfield Trail and the Gooding 385 
Boulevard extension as an alternate are now ready.  Bid books and drawings for 386 
the North Orange Trail Phase II are now ready as well.   387 

 Bid books and drawings for the Glen Oak Park project should be ready at the 388 
beginning of September.   389 

 The night swim dates have been set for 7/10 and 24/09, and 8/7/09.  The township 390 
barbeque will take place on 8/1/09 from 7:30-10:30 PM and the cost will be $6.00 391 
each in advance or at the door. 392 

 He formally invited this Board to attend the pool addition grand opening on 393 
Friday July 31, 2009 at 1:00 PM.  Mr. Fisher asked if he could jump in the pool at 394 
that time.  Mr. Katz responded that he could as it will be open and filled at that 395 
time. 396 

 397 
MAINTENANCE AND PARKS MANAGER REPORT 398 
♦ Ms. Hugh said that she is open to any parks related discussions such as trail design, 399 

etc. and she asked that people approach her with any questions, suggestions, etc. 400 
♦ Ms. Eckels asked about the sprinklers along the trails along S. Old State Road.  Mr. 401 

Overturf said those are owned by the homeowners’ association.  Ms. Eckels said they 402 
run during the rain.   403 
 404 

OWNER’S REP REPORT 405 
♦ Mr. Overturf said that chip and seal was added at the old township hall for parking by 406 

sledders during the sledding season.  407 
 408 
ADJOURNMENT 409 
♦ There was no further business to come before the Board.  Motion to adjourn.  Meeting 410 

adjourned. 411 
 412 



 
 

ORANGE TOWNSHIP COMMUNITY PARK BOARD 
 

July 22, 2009 Regular Meeting 
 

8 

__________________________________ 413 
Jennifer Christian, Chairperson 414 

 415 
********************************** 416 

Steve Aumiller, Vice-Chairman 417 
 418 

_________________________________ 419 
Len Fisher, Member 420 

 421 
_________________________________ 422 

Chris Masciola, Member 423 
 424 

_________________________________ 425 
Michelle Eckels, Member 426 

 427 
Attest:__________________________  428 

Lisa F. Knapp, Secretary 429 


